
www.lichfielddc.gov.uk /lichfielddc lichfield_dc MyStaffs App

Your ref
Our ref   
Ask for Christine Lewis

Email christine.lewis@lichfieldc.gov.uk

District Council House, Frog Lane
Lichfield, Staffordshire WS136YU

Customer Services 01543 308000
Direct Line 01543 308065

Monday, 18 March 2019
Dear Sir/Madam

LEISURE, PARKS & WASTE MANAGEMENT (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) 
COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Leisure, Parks & Waste Management (Overview and Scrutiny) Committee 
has been arranged to take place TUESDAY, 26TH MARCH, 2019 at 6.00 PM IN THE 
COMMITTEE ROOM District Council House, Lichfield to consider the following business.

Access to the Committee Room is via the Members’ Entrance.

Yours Faithfully

Neil Turner BSc (Hons) MSc
Director of Transformation & Resources

To: Members of Leisure, Parks & Waste Management (Overview and Scrutiny) 
Committee

Councillors Matthews (Chairman), Mrs Banevicius (Vice-Chair), Rayner (Vice-Chair), 
Mrs Bacon, Miss Fisher, Pullen, Mrs Pullen, Salter, Mrs Tranter, Mrs Woodward and 
B Yeates

Public Document Pack



www.lichfielddc.gov.uk /lichfielddc lichfield_dc MyStaffs App

AGENDA
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interests 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 3 - 6

4. Work Programme 7 - 8

5. Leisure Management Outsourcing - Presentation by Freedom 
Leisure 

Verbal Report

6. Burntwood Parks 9 - 12

7. Review of Parks Events Portfolio To Follow



LEISURE, PARKS & WASTE MANAGEMENT (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) 
COMMITTEE

16 JANUARY 2019

PRESENT:

Councillors Matthews (Chairman), Mrs Banevicius (Vice-Chair), Rayner (Vice-Chair), 
Mrs Pullen, Salter, Mrs Tranter, Mrs Woodward and B Yeates.

(In accordance with Council Procedure Rule No.17 Councillors Leytham attended the 
meeting).

8 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Councillors Mrs Bacon and Pullen.

9 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

Councillor B. Yeates declared a personal interest in Item 7 as he had dealt with the Garrick 
Theatre in a professional capacity.

10 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Minutes of the previous meeting were signed as a correct record.

11 WORK PROGRAMME 

The work programme was discussed and it was noted that some items had not been 
considered due to the timing of information being available and along with staffing changes.  
There were also concerns that decisions had been made at Cabinet without consultation with 
the Committee first and that input could have been a great aid to the Cabinet Member.

It was reported that there were a number of items on the Forward Plan that would be coming 
to the Committee.

It was requested that an update of the LOPS involvement in the Health and Wellbeing Delivery 
Plan be included on the work programme.

RESOLVED: That the work programme be update.

12 FRIARY GRANGE LEISURE CENTRE UPDATE 

The Committee received a presentation from the District Council’s Leisure Contracts 
Consultant, Mike Dix on the current condition of the Friary Grange Leisure Centre (FGLC) and 
options for the premises.

It was reported that the condition of FGLC was not unusual for its age.  It was also reported 
that there were some shared cost as the building was owned by Staffordshire County Council 
(SCC) and used by the adjoining school, however this school would soon become an 
Academy.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Options for the facilities and associated estimated costs were presented to the Committee.  It 
was noted at this point that the Sport England supply and demand assessment showed that 
there was just enough pool space up to 2029 based on the current housing numbers in Local 
Plan however after this date or if more houses were planned, there would be an under 
provision.  It was reported that the provision was not statutory but recommended. It was noted 
that the council received a grant from Sports England for previous works and there was a 
clawback clause in place.

Members asked the Cabinet Member what the initial thoughts were for the facility and it was 
reported that it was desired to keep the facility or something similar however costs needed 
consideration.  The Cabinet Member reported that the condition survey was not complete and 
it would be premature to have any preferences until that work had been completed.

It was asked if discussions had taken place with SCC in regards to contributions to any repairs 
and it was reported that a meeting had been scheduled to discuss issues.  Members noted 
that there would be an impact on many other schools in the area that use the swimming pool.  
There were concerns that it would be a low consideration for SCC as they are having to make 
cuts in other important areas such as social care and may not have the budget to help fund 
any repairs or alternative options.

It was asked if planning contributions included indoor sports provision and it was reported that 
there was an element but it did not calculate to a high amount.

The Committee felt that any loss of a swimming facility in the area would be against the 
strategic priority of a health community and would have a detrimental effect on schools and 
residents alike.  It was asked if it could be considered as part of the BRS site and it was 
reported that the Member Working Group were looking at a strategy for that site.  It was also 
asked if a transfer of FGLC to the council could be considered.

The Committee agreed that an update should be given at the next meeting following 
discussions with SCC

RESOLVED: That an update be given at the next meeting.

13 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED: “That as publicity would be prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the 
confidential nature of the business to be transacted, the public and press be excluded from the 
meeting for the following items of business, which would involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972”

IN PRIVATE

14 LICHFIELD GARRICK THEATRE 

Minutes for this item are recorded separately as it includes exempt information. 

(The Meeting closed at 8.10 pm)

Page 4



CHAIRMAN

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



LEISURE, PARKS AND WASTE MANAGEMENT (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2018-
2019 (v5)

Item 16 Jan
2019

26 
March 
2019

Details/Reasons Officer
Member Lead

Policy Development

Terms of reference Annual review of the terms of reference of the Committee CL DL

Garrick Theatre  To consider Agreement – joint review of partnership and 
performance LDC/Garrick RKK DL

Locking of Parks in 
Burntwood

 Review impact and actions of gate locking and subsequent 
interventions in Burntwood Parks

Review of Parks Events 
Portfolio 

 Overview of the 2018 events portfolio within LOPS

Update of Freedom Leisure  Review of the year one partnership between Freedom Leisure 
& LDC

Friary Grange Leisure 
Centre

 Presentation  RKK DL

Briefing Papers

Waste 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Burntwood Parks 
Cllr David Leytham; Cabinet Member for Operational Services, Leisure and Waste
Date: 26 March 2019
Contact Officer: Gary Brownridge
Tel Number: 01543 687572
Email: gary.brownridge@lichfielddc.gov.uk
Key Decision? NO 
Local Ward 
Members Chase Terrace; Sue Woodward, Eric Drinkwater

Boney Hay & Central; Diane Evans, Natasha Pullen, 
Richard Bamborough.
Chasetown; Sharon Banevicius, Beth Fisher.
Summerfield and All Saints; Heather Tranter, Brenda 
Constable

Leisure, Parks & 
Waste 

Management 
(Overview and 

Scrutiny) 
Committee 

1. Executive Summary
1.1 To provide the Committee with a general overview of the decision to cease the locking of four parks in 

Burntwood. 

2. Recommendations
2.1  Report to be noted

3. Background
3.1 The District Council currently has 15 main parks / play sites and a significant number of open spaces 

including churchyards, woodlands and biodiversity areas that it has responsibility to maintain. There 
are nine parks in Lichfield, five in Burntwood (excluding Prince’s Park) and one in Armitage. 

3.2 The general maintenance specification for all the parks and open spaces throughout the District is 
relatively the same: 16 grass cuts per season; flower beds maintained monthly and planted twice a 
year; hedges cut either once or twice per year depending on being native or ornamental; sports pitches 
marked weekly; litter picking and bin emptying as needed.

3.3 In the mid-1990s, the District Council took control of Burntwood Leisure Centre and a significant 
number of parks and open spaces along with operational staff from Burntwood Town Council. The 
transfer included the general grounds maintenance of the areas and also included daily locking of 
(Chasetown Memorial Park and Chase Terrace Park / Mineral Line). Following a significant number of 
anti-social behaviour (ASB) issues in and around the Burntwood area that also included vandalism to 
Council assets, a further two parks (Redwood Park and Elder Lane Park) were fenced, gated and added 
to the park locking scheme.

3.4 At the time the locking of these parks did help to reduce the number of incidents relating to vandalism 
of Council assets and also helped to reduce the number of ASB issues that the police has to deal with 
within the Burntwood Parks.

3.5 In 2016, all departments within the Council were asked to identify savings to contribute to the 
Council’s funding gap. These savings needed to be additional savings over and above the savings 
already identified from Fit for the Future Phase 1. Service managers within the Leisure and Parks 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Directorate were asked to identify where potential additional savings could be identified. Several 
suggestions were made including an option to cease the locking of the Burntwood Parks.

3.6 The rationale behind the suggestion to cease the locking of the Burntwood Parks was as follows:

1. The ongoing ASB within the Burntwood area had significantly reduced. 

2. None of the other parks owned and managed by the District Council were being locked. 

3. A significant proportion of the Parks’ budget was being used to provide the park locking service. 
In 2017/18 the cost for the security company to undertake the service was £10,585.

4.  Operational staff had been questioned on several occasions as to why the parks had to be 
locked over night as it restricted certain members of the public from using the parks when it 
suited them and also restricted access across the parks. (Chase Terrace and Elder Lane).

3.7 The decision to cease the locking of the parks and offer up the savings was approved in 2016 by the 
then Director of Leisure and Parks in conjunction with the Cabinet Member.

3.8 In 2016, the District Council was also in discussion with Burntwood Town Council with a view to 
transferring the Parks and Open Spaces in Burntwood back to the Town Council. A date for the transfer 
was initially set for 1 April 2017. With this in mind, a decision was made to delay the removal of the 
park locking provision until after 1 April 2017. At this point it would have been a decision for 
Burntwood Town Council if they wanted to continue with or to cease the park locking service. 

3.9 Just prior to 1 April 2017, the District Council was informed that the Town Council had reviewed the 
option of the parks transfer and they had decided they were not in a position to take back the Parks 
and Open Spaces at that time.

3.10 As the cost for the park locking had already been offered up and removed from the Parks’ budgets in 
2016, the Head of Leisure and Operational Services instructed that the locking of the Burntwood Parks 
would have to cease and a date of 1 April 2018 was agreed.

3.11 Since the park locking ceased a few issues were brought to the Council’s attention:

1. Groups were congregating in vehicles in the evenings and later at night on the car park at 
Redwood Park creating noise and there were allegations of possible drug taking. 

An agreement has been put in place in conjunction with local residents from Aspen Grove 
whereby the vehicular gates are locked overnight to restrict vehicular access to the park.

The Police were made aware of the allegations of drug taking and residents asked to inform the 
Police as soon as possible if they were concerned that this activity continued. 

2. Complaints were received from local people about not being able to access Redwood Car Park 
during the day.

Initially the vehicular gates were locked and only opened for events or by the community 
church who use the pavilion. This has now changed and the gates are open throughout the day 
following the agreement with residents of Aspen Grove.

3. Reports were received from local residents and via local Councillors of alleged ASB by way of 
motorbikes scrambling around Chase Terrace Park, groups gathering and noise nuisance late at 
night.

As ASB is a Police matter, all incidents of ASB should be reported to the Police as soon as 
possible. Residents who report ASB to the council are advised to call 101 and report this to the 
Police. 

Chase Terrace Park was inspected following the allegation of motorbikes scrambling and no 
evidence or damage to the area was identified.

3.12 Reports of ASB that were received by the Police relating to Burntwood Parks.

Page 10



2017:

2 incidents reported in Burntwood Park / Elder Lane 

3 incidents reported in Redwood Park

4 Incidents reported in Chase Terrace Park

2018:

5 incidents reported in Burntwood Park / Elder Lane 

2 incidents reported in Redwood Park

3 Incidents reported in Chase Terrace Park

2019 January-March:

1 incident reported in Burntwood Park / Elder Lane 

2 Incidents reported in Chase Terrace Park

To put this into perspective, 27 incidents were reported for the same period in Beacon Park 
Lichfield.

The Police have confirmed as of March 2019 that there has not been an increase in ASB within 
Burntwood Parks since the gates have been left unlocked. It was suggested by the Police that if 
the vehicular access at Redwood Park had been left open permanently then ASB in this location 
is likely to have risen. 

Alternative Options 1. Transfer of the Parks and Open Spaces back to Burntwood Town Council and 
allow the Town Council to determine the future of the park locking provision. 

2. Continue with the park locking and increase the funding gap.
3. Continue with the park locking and reduce other services to prevent an 

increase to the funding gap.

Consultation 1. Consultation was carried out between the Head of Leisure and Operational 
Services and Burntwood Town Council. 

2. Consultation and discussion was carried out within the Leisure and 
Operational Services team and with the Cabinet Member.

Financial 
Implications

1. A payment of £10,585 was made to the security company for the park locking 
service during 2017/18.  

2. A financial pressure was created in the 2016/17 and 2017/18 Parks’ budget 
as the ceasing of the park locking was initially due to be implemented in 
2016.

Contribution to the 
Delivery of the 
Strategic Plan

1. The ceasing of the park locking contributed to the Strategic Plan by helping to 
reduce the Council’s expenditure budget and help to make a Council that is 
Fit for the Future

Page 11



Crime & Safety 
Issues

1. The Police have confirmed as of March 2019 that there has not been an 
increase in ASB within Burntwood Parks since the gates have been left 
unlocked. It was suggested by the Police that if the vehicular access at 
Redwood Park had been left open permanently then ASB in this location is 
likely to have risen. However, as it stands there has been no increase. 

GDPR/Privacy 
Impact Assessment

1. N/A

Risk Description How We Manage It Severity of Risk (RYG)
A Increase in ASB and vandalism within 

the parks.
Ensure the Police are informed about 
any ASB issues as soon as possible.
Work in conjunction with friends and 
community groups.
Monitoring of areas and quick 
rectification of damage.

Green (tolerable) 
The ceasing of the park locking has been in 
place almost 12 months. There has not been 
any significant evidence to identify that ASB 
has increased during this time. This has also 
been supported by data supplied by the 
Police.

B ASB and vandalism to Council assets 
increased to a point that the locking 
of the parks needed to be re-instated 
causing an ongoing budget pressure.

Additional budget to cover the locking 
provision would have to be applied for 
and approved by the Cabinet.

Yellow (financial). 

C
D
E

Background documents

Relevant web links

Equality, Diversity 
and Human Rights 
Implications

1.    All the parks owned and maintained by the Council are now open for all 
members of the public to enjoy 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Work Programme
	6 Burntwood Parks

